
Health and Social Care Committee 
 

Meeting Venue: 
Committee Room 1 - Senedd 

 

 

 

Meeting date: 
27 September 2012  

 

Meeting time: 
09:00 

 

For further information please contact:  

Policy: Llinos Dafydd  Legislation: Fay Buckle 
Committee Clerk 
029 2089 8403/8041 
HSCCommittee@wales.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 
 

 

1. Introductions, apologies and substitutions   

2. Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill: Stage 1 - Evidence Session 5 
(09.00 - 09.30)   
Minister for Health and Social Services 
  
Lesley Griffiths AM, Minister for Health and Social Services 
Christopher Brereton - Head of Environmental Public Health Legislation, Welsh 
Government 
Christopher Humphreys - Legal Services Department, Welsh Government 
  

3. Papers to note (09.30 - 09.35) (Pages 1 - 2) 

 
Minutes from Committee meetings held on 12 and 18 July 2012  (Pages 3 - 8) 
 
 

Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill: letter from the Minister for Health and Social 
Services to the Chair (17 July 2012)  (Pages 9 - 11) 
 
 

Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill: Letter from the Federation of Small Businesses 
(30 July 2012)  (Pages 12 - 14) 
 
 

Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill: Note on Norwich City Council and Lichfield 

Public Document Pack



District Council food hygiene rating web pages (31 July 2012)  (Pages 15 - 17) 
 
 

Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill : letter from the Chair to the Minister for 
Health and Social Services (19 July 2012)  (Pages 18 - 21) 
 
 

Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill: letter from the Minister for Health and Social 
Services to the Chair (8 August 2012)  (Pages 22 - 31) 
 

4. Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the 
public from the meeting for the following business: (09.35)   
Items 5 & 6  

Private session 

5. Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill: Stage 1 - Consideration of the 
draft report (09.40 - 11.00)  

6. Preparation for Draft Budget 2013-14 (13.15 - 15.00)  



 

Health and Social Care Committee 

 

Meeting Venue: Committee Room 1 - Senedd 
 

 

  
Meeting date:  Wednesday, 18 July 2012 

 

  
Meeting time:  08:30 - 12:40 

 

  
This meeting can be viewed on Senedd TV at: 
http://www.senedd.tv/archiveplayer.jsf?v=en_800000_18_07_2012&t=0&l=en 
 

 
 

Concise Minutes: 

 

   
Assembly Members:  Mark Drakeford (Chair) 

Mick Antoniw 
Rebecca Evans 
Vaughan Gething 
William Graham 
Elin Jones 
Darren Millar 
Lynne Neagle 
Lindsay Whittle 
Kirsty Williams 

 

  

   
Witnesses:  Dr Chris Jones, Welsh Government 

David Sissling, Director General for Health and Social 
Services, Welsh Government 
Shane Brennan, Association of Convenience Stores 
John Dyson, British Hospitality Association 
Brigid Simmonds, British Beer and Pub Association 
 

  

   
Committee Staff:  Llinos Dafydd (Clerk) 

Fay Buckle (Clerk) 
Claire Griffiths (Deputy Clerk) 
Joanest Jackson (Legal Advisor) 
Lisa Salkeld (Legal Advisor) 
Philippa Watkins (Researcher) 

 

  

 

1. Introductions, apologies and substitutions  
1.1 There were no apologies or substitutions. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



2. Consideration of recently published correspondence between Welsh 
Government officials and Professor Marcus Longley  
2.1 The Committee questioned Professor Marcus Longley on the recently published 
correspondence between Welsh Government Officials and himself. 
 
2.2 The Committee questioned Lesley Griffiths AM, Minister for Health and Social 
Services, David Sissling and Dr Chris Jones on the recently published correspondence 
between Welsh Government Officials and Professor Marcus Longley. 
 
2.3 Due to a technical issue, the Committee adjourned from 9.32 to 10.05. 
 
 

3. Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill: Stage 1 - Evidence session 4  
3.1 Due to the earlier technical problem and time restraints, the Minister for Health 
and Social Services agreed that the Chair would write to her with the questions 
Members would have asked and she will to respond to the Committee in writing.  
 

4. Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill: Stage 1 - Evidence session 4  
4.1 The Committee took evidence from the Association of Convenience Stores, British 
Beer and Pub Association and the British Hospitality Association. 
 

5. Papers to note  
5.1 The Committee noted the minutes of the meetings held on 28 June and 4 July 
 
 
5.1 Inquiry into Residential Care for Older People - Notes of reference group meetings 
held on 24 May & 12 June  
 
5.2 The Committee noted the papers. 
 
5.3 The Chair recorded the Committee’s thanks for the work undertaken by – and the 
valuable contribution of – the members of the Reference Group, established to assist 
the Committee in its inquiry into residential care for older people. 
 

6. Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the public 
from the meeting for the following business:  
6.1 The Committee agreed the motion. 
 

7. Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill:  Key Issues  
7.1 The Committee considered and agreed the key issues paper and also made a 
number of suggestions for the report. 
 

8. Inquiry into Residential Care for Older People: Key Issues  
8.1 The Committee discussed and agreed the key issues for the report on the inquiry 
into residential care for older people. 
 

Page 2



 

 

Health and Social Care Committee 

 

Meeting Venue: Committee Room 3 - Senedd 
 

 

  
Meeting date:  Thursday, 12 July 2012 

 

  
Meeting time:  10:00 - 12:03 

 

  
This meeting can be viewed on Senedd TV at: 
http://www.senedd.tv/archiveplayer.jsf?v=en_400000_12_07_2012&t=0&l=en 
 

 
 

Concise Minutes: 

 

   
Assembly Members:  Mark Drakeford (Chair) 

Mick Antoniw 
Rebecca Evans 
Vaughan Gething 
William Graham 
Elin Jones 
Darren Millar 
Lynne Neagle 
Aled Roberts 
Lindsay Whittle 

 

  

   
Witnesses:  Graham Perry, Monmouthshire County Council 

Steve Wearne, Food Standards Agency Cymru 
Simon Wilkinson, Welsh Local Government Association 
Liz Withers, Consumer Focus Wales 
 

  

   
Committee Staff:  Fay Buckle (Clerk) 

Llinos Dafydd (Clerk) 
Claire Griffiths (Deputy Clerk) 
Catherine Hunt (Deputy Clerk) 
Lisa Salkeld (Legal Advisor) 
Victoria Paris (Researcher) 
Philippa Watkins (Researcher) 

 

  

 

1. Introductions, apologies and substitutions  
1.1 Apologies were received from Kirsty Williams.  Aled Roberts attended as a 
substitute. 
 

Agenda Item 3a

Page 3



 

 

2. Consideration of a motion notified to the Committee in accordance 
with Standing Order 17.44  
2.1 There were no objections to the motion, therefore the motion was agreed in 
accordance with Standing Order 17.34(i). 
 

3. Inquiry into the implementation of the NSF for diabetes in Wales 
and its future direction - Consideration of terms of reference  
3.1 The Committee agreed the terms of reference for its inquiry into the 
implementation of the NSF for diabetes in Wales and its future direction, and that it 
would issue a consultation over the summer recess. 
 
3.2 The Committee agreed its intention to undertake an inquiry into the appraisal of 
medical technologies and to consult on the scope of the inquiry over the summer 
recess. 
 

4. Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill: Stage 1 - Evidence Session 2  
4.1 The Committee took evidence from the Food Standards Agency and 
ConsumerFocus Wales. 
  
4.2 Steve Wearne (FSA) agreed to send a copy of the qualitative study to the Committee 
on further work commissioned following the ConsumerFocus Wales consumer study 
when published at the end of July. 
 
 

5. Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill: Stage 1 - Evidence Session 2  
5.1 The Committee took evidence from the Welsh Local Government Association and 
the Directors of Public Protection Wales. 
 
 

6. Papers to Note  
6.1 The papers were noted. 
 
TRANSCRIPT 
View the meeting transcript.  

Page 4



 

Health and Social Care Committee 

 

Meeting Venue: Committee Room 3 - Senedd 
 

 

  
Meeting date:  Thursday, 12 July 2012 

 

  
Meeting time:  13:15 - 15:11 

 

  

This meeting can be viewed on Senedd TV at: 
http://www.senedd.tv/archiveplayer.jsf?v=en_400002_12_07_2012&t=0&l=en 

 
 

Concise Minutes: 

 

   
Assembly Members:  Mark Drakeford (Chair) 

Mick Antoniw 
Rebecca Evans 
William Graham 
Elin Jones 
Darren Millar 
Lynne Neagle 
Jenny Rathbone 
Aled Roberts 
Lindsay Whittle 

 

  

   
Witnesses:  Julie Barratt, Chartered Institute for Environmental 

Health 
Dean Bolton, FSB Wales 
Iestyn Davies, Federation of Small Business 
Mike Jones, FSB Wales 
Dr Marion Lyons, Public Health Wales 
 

  

   
Committee Staff:  Fay Buckle (Clerk) 

Claire Griffiths (Deputy Clerk) 
Lisa Salkeld (Legal Advisor) 
Philippa Watkins (Researcher) 

 

  

 

1. Introductions, apologies and substitutions  
1.1 Apologies were received from Vaughan Gething and Kirsty Williams. Jenny 
Rathbone and Aled Roberts substituted. 
 

2. Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill: Stage 1 - Evidence Session 3  
2.1 The Committee took evidence from the Federation of Small Businesses (FSB). 

Page 5



 
2.2 The FSB agreed to write to the Committee with specific details regarding numbers 
and businesses doing well and not as well with food hygiene from the focus group of 
FSB Members who assisted with the written evidence submitted to the Committee. 
 

3. Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill: Stage 1 - Evidence Session 3  
3.1 The Committee took evidence from the Chartered Institute of Environmental Health 
Wales and Public Health Wales. 
 

4. Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill: Stage 1 - Discussion of evidence 
received  
4.1 Members identified key issues that had emerged from the evidence received on the 
scrutiny of the Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill. 
 
TRANSCRIPT 
View the meeting transcript.  

Page 6



 

Health and Social Care Committee 

 

Meeting Venue: Committee Room 1 - Senedd 
 

 

  
Meeting date:  Wednesday, 18 July 2012 

 

  
Meeting time:  08:30 - 12:40 

 

  
This meeting can be viewed on Senedd TV at: 
http://www.senedd.tv/archiveplayer.jsf?v=en_800000_18_07_2012&t=0&l=en 
 

 
 

Concise Minutes: 

 

   
Assembly Members:  Mark Drakeford (Chair) 

Mick Antoniw 
Rebecca Evans 
Vaughan Gething 
William Graham 
Elin Jones 
Darren Millar 
Lynne Neagle 
Lindsay Whittle 
Kirsty Williams 

 

  

   
Witnesses:  Dr Chris Jones, Welsh Government 

David Sissling, Director General for Health and Social 
Services, Welsh Government 
Shane Brennan, Association of Convenience Stores 
John Dyson, British Hospitality Association 
Brigid Simmonds, British Beer and Pub Association 
 

  

   
Committee Staff:  Llinos Dafydd (Clerk) 

Fay Buckle (Clerk) 
Claire Griffiths (Deputy Clerk) 
Joanest Jackson (Legal Advisor) 
Lisa Salkeld (Legal Advisor) 
Philippa Watkins (Researcher) 

 

  

 

1. Introductions, apologies and substitutions  
1.1 There were no apologies or substitutions. 
 

Page 7



2. Consideration of recently published correspondence between Welsh 
Government officials and Professor Marcus Longley  
2.1 The Committee questioned Professor Marcus Longley on the recently published 
correspondence between Welsh Government Officials and himself. 
 
2.2 The Committee questioned Lesley Griffiths AM, Minister for Health and Social 
Services, David Sissling and Dr Chris Jones on the recently published correspondence 
between Welsh Government Officials and Professor Marcus Longley. 
 
2.3 Due to a technical issue, the Committee adjourned from 9.32 to 10.05. 
 
 

3. Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill: Stage 1 - Evidence session 4  
3.1 Due to the earlier technical problem and time restraints, the Minister for Health 
and Social Services agreed that the Chair would write to her with the questions 
Members would have asked and she will to respond to the Committee in writing.  
 

4. Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill: Stage 1 - Evidence session 4  
4.1 The Committee took evidence from the Association of Convenience Stores, British 
Beer and Pub Association and the British Hospitality Association. 
 

5. Papers to note  
5.1 The Committee noted the minutes of the meetings held on 28 June and 4 July 
 
 
5.1 Inquiry into Residential Care for Older People - Notes of reference group meetings 
held on 24 May & 12 June  
 
5.2 The Committee noted the papers. 
 
5.3 The Chair recorded the Committee’s thanks for the work undertaken by – and the 
valuable contribution of – the members of the Reference Group, established to assist 
the Committee in its inquiry into residential care for older people. 
 

6. Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the public 
from the meeting for the following business:  
6.1 The Committee agreed the motion. 
 

7. Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill:  Key Issues  
7.1 The Committee considered and agreed the key issues paper and also made a 
number of suggestions for the report. 
 

8. Inquiry into Residential Care for Older People: Key Issues  
8.1 The Committee discussed and agreed the key issues for the report on the inquiry 
into residential care for older people. 
 

Page 8



Agenda Item 3b

Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Agenda Item 3c

Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill 

 

At the last Health and Social Care Committee meeting, Members received 

print outs of web pages from Norwich City Council and a consortium of local 

authorities in the Staffordshire area relating to food hygiene ratings.  I also 

wrote to both asking a number of questions and their responses are below. 

Norwich City Council 

Norwich City Council has been publishing its inspection reports online since 

October 2005 without major incident or complaint. We have effectively 

assimilated the publication of reports into our existing procedures. To 

answer your questions in turn:  

1. Have you found publishing inspection reports to be burdensome and 

do you redact any information prior to publication? 

Although time must be spent pdf'ing documents, naming them correctly and 

filing them electronically in the right place (where the report we run for our 

website can pick up the link) the process, at least from the officer's 

perspective, is not burdensome. I suspect that is also the case for our web 

team.  

From the outset we designed our reports and procedures with the eventual 

publication of the report in mind. For instance, our aim is to create an 

inspection document that does not need redacting. Personal information is 

kept to the covering letter (which is not published) and care is taken not to 

identify individuals in the published report. We peer review inspection 

reports which hopefully ensures errors, of which there are some, are picked 

up. 

2. Has publishing the reports incurred any extra costs to the council? 

Yes, I am sure there is an additional cost to the publishing of reports but I 

suspect these are minimal. However I am unable to quantify this for you.  

3. Have you employed any additional staff to undertake management of 

the food hygiene element of the website? 

We have not employed any additional staff to manage the food hygiene 

element of the website. 

Publication has ensured that our reports are easier to understand than 

previously, have a summary of each compliance area which serves to qualify 

and balance the content (bringing out the good points as well as the bad) 

Agenda Item 3d

Page 15



and ensured the content of the report relates to the hygiene rating awarded 

- especially in regard to where improvements are needed. 

All this came out of the need to communicate to a different audience, be 

fairer to the food business operator, be transparent in our thinking and 

accountable for the rating we give. It has been such a worthwhile exercise 

that in my opinion the benefits more than meet the costs of publication, 

such as they are. I would strongly recommend all local authorities do 

something similar. 

 

Lichfield District Council (member of ratemyplace)  

1. Have you found publishing inspection reports to be burdensome and 

do you redact any information prior to publication? 

We have been publishing food hygiene inspection reports since 2007. 

Publishing couldn't be easier. We remove confidential information such as 

names and then secure the document using Adobe Writer. We include this 

task as part of the overall inspection process and essentially on average it 

takes 5 minutes to do. 

 Publishing our reports has been positive in a number of ways: 

- it allows the public to rightly see what we do and ask questions of our 

work 

- it has changed the way we write letters to our customers. No longer do 

we quote legislation or make our sentences long and verbose, we try 

to come straight to the point e.g. clean the wall or paint the ceiling. 

Customers like this and officers find it easier to do. 

- press coverage (both positive & negative) has led to an increased 

interest in food safety and has driven up standards without the need 

for regulation in some instances 

2. Has publishing the reports incurred any extra costs to the council? 

In terms of costs, if you take the running of ratemyplace it costs each 

partner council about £600 per year. This includes hosting, training, website 

development and website management.  

3. Have you employed any additional staff to undertake management of 

the food hygiene element of the website? 

No additional staff have been employed. The site is run by ourselves at 

Lichfield DC and the time element to it is part of everyday roles. 

Page 16



All 8 partner councils have recently joined the NFHRS even so, ratemyplace 

continues to thrive. We re-launched the site to coincide with this move to the 

NFHRS.  

From the ratemyplace site we populate all the information to the national site 

automatically. Locally the brand is well known. Future developments include 

photographs of the business and menus (which will allow us to do trading 

standards checks), charges will be levied for this service to our business 

customers. 

Finally this is how we display in the windows! The square in the corner is a 

3D barcode which takes you to ratemyplace, the scores and access to the 

reports! 

 

Page 17



 

 

 Bae Caerdydd 
Cardiff Bay 
CF99 1NA 

 
Ffôn / Tel: 029 2089 8041     

E-bost / Email: HSCCommittee@wales.gov.uk 
 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg/We welcome correspondence in both English and Welsh 

 

Y Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol 
Health and Social Care Committee 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Dear Lesley, 

 

Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill   

I am most grateful for your understanding of the technical issues we 

experienced in the Health and Social Care Committee meeting, held on 18th 

July, and your willingness to answer Members questions via written 

correspondence.  The questions are contained in the attached Annex. 

 

Following your response, Members may wish to hold a short evidence 

session with you on the morning of Thursday 27th September 2012.  I would 

be grateful if your office could liaise with the legislation committee clerk 

(Fay.buckle@wales.gov.uk) to agree a convenient time.   

 
I would be grateful if you could give consideration to this request and look 
forward to your response. 
 

Yours sincerely 

 

 
Mark Drakeford AM 

Chair  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Lesley Griffiths AM 

Minister for Health and Social Services 

Welsh Government 

 

 

 18 July 2012 

 

 

Agenda Item 3e

Page 18



  

 

 

Annex  

 
1. Is the Minister satisfied that the voluntary scheme has been given 

sufficient time to become established, and that there is a clear need 
to introduce it on a statutory basis? 

 
2. Concerns have been raised regarding the practical application of the 

scheme with regards to the use of community facilities, such as 
community centres, which may be used by various groups to 
prepare and serve food.  In such cases, can you clarify who would be 
rated, for example would it be the premises and/or the caterer, how 
would each group be rated and how would the ratings be displayed?  

 
3. Is there a conflict between the Bill and Food Standards 

Agency/Government work to reduce burdens on businesses? 
 
4. Will any additional financial assistance be made available to 

businesses for improvements that would help compliance with food 
hygiene legislation and improve their rating? 

 
5. Has the Minister given any thought to how the funds raised from 

Fixed Penalty receipts might be used? Some witnesses have 
suggested that such funds should be retained by the relevant local 
authority to use to improve food hygiene standards by raising 
awareness of the scheme and supporting low scoring businesses in 
improving hygiene standards. Do you have any comments on this 
suggestion?  

 
6. Given the various elements to the rating criteria, do you think there 

is sufficient public understanding of the meaning of ratings and the 
criteria on which they are based? Do you think details of ratings 
criteria should be displayed alongside or incorporated into the food 
hygiene sticker? 

 
7. Is the Minister satisfied that a 0 – 5 rating system will give clear 

information to consumers about a premises‟ hygiene system? 
 
8. In developing the Bill, has any thought been given to using other 

grading systems that may be easier for the public to understand, 
such as Scotland’s pass or fail system or A B C gradings as seen in 
other countries? 

 
9. Are you satisfied that the appeals process as set out in the Bill is 

sufficiently independent, and what are your views on the suggestion 
that appeals should be considered by an independent food 
authority? 

 

Page 19



  

10. According to the Explanatory Memorandum, the number of appeals 
is expected to double from 40 to 80 under the mandatory scheme – 
what is this estimate based on? 

 
11. Is there a danger that businesses will use the right of appeal to try 

to improve their rating as an alternative to paying for a re-rating 
inspection? How might this impact on food authorities' resources? 

 
12. What is the Minister’s response to the concern that the Bill’s 

provisions regarding requirement to display ratings allow for 
extended periods of time when no rating is displayed at a premises 
and therefore no information is provided to consumers? 

 
13. Would prescribing these time periods in regulations, rather than on 

the face of the Bill, allow for greater flexibility in the development of 
a workable food hygiene rating scheme? 

 
14. Given the evidence the Committee has received in support of the 

need for food business establishments to publish their food hygiene 
ratings on promotional material and/or their website, together with 
dates detailing the validity of the rating, what are your views on 
this? 

 
15. To what extent do you think that a requirement to publish 

inspection reports would help promote consistency in reporting and 
what might the likely impact be on food authority resources? For 
example, would the reports be required to be redacted and 
bilingual?  Are there any reports which you would consider would be 
unable to be published?  
 
*The committee is minded to make a recommendation in its Stage 1 
report that food hygiene inspection reports should be published in 
their entirety, either on the Food Standards Agency or relevant local 
authority website (depending on which is the most appropriate).   

 
16. The Bill as drafted makes it an offence to fail to comply with a 

request by a person to be informed verbally of the food hygiene 
rating.  Can you confirm that this offence relates to circumstances 
where an operator provides an incorrect rating, as well as when they 
fail to provide a rating?   Do you think this is made sufficiently clear 
in the Bill or is there a need for further clarification? 
 

17. Sections 8 and 9 of the Bill makes it an offence for the operator of a 
food business establishment to comply with a request by a person 
to be informed verbally of the food hygiene rating of the 
establishment.  What consideration has been given to extending the 
duty to cover employees of the food business, as of course the 
manager may not always be present when the request is made? 

 

Page 20



  

18. If the number of requests for re-rating prior to mandatory scheme 
coming into force is higher than the anticipated 1,110, how will this 
additional cost be met? 
 

19. How will a consistent approach to the calculating of “reasonable 
costs” by food authorities in relation to re-rating inspections be 
ensured? 

 
20. Will additional financial support be available to local authorities in 

relation to the administering of fixed penalty notices? 
 

Page 21



Agenda Item 3f

Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31


	Agenda
	3 Papers to note
	3a Minutes from Committee meetings held on 12 and 18 July 2012
	12 July 2012 (pm)
	18 July 2012

	3b Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill: letter from the Minister for Health and Social Services to the Chair (17 July 2012)
	3c Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill: Letter from the Federation of Small Businesses (30 July 2012)
	3d Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill: Note on Norwich City Council and Lichfield District Council food hygiene rating web pages (31 July 2012)
	3e Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill : letter from the Chair to the Minister for Health and Social Services (19 July 2012)
	3f Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Bill: letter from the Minister for Health and Social Services to the Chair (8 August 2012)

